
JOHN WARD
Head of Finance and Governance Services

Contact: Lisa Higenbottam on 01243 534684
Email: lhigenbottam@chichester.gov.uk

East Pallant House
1 East Pallant
Chichester
West Sussex
PO19 1TY
Tel: 01243 785166
www.chichester.gov.uk

A meeting of Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 - East 
Pallant House on Tuesday 17 March 2015 at 10.00 am

MEMBERS: Mrs C M M Apel (Chairman), Mr R J Hayes (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr A D Chaplin, Mr P Clementson, Mrs P M Dignum, Mrs N Graves, 
Mrs E Hamilton, Mr G H Hicks, Mr S Lloyd-Williams, Mr G V McAra, 
Mr H C Potter, Mrs J A E Tassell, Mr N R D Thomas, Mrs B A Tinson 
and Mr M Woolley

AGENDA
Part 1

1  Chairman's Announcements 
Any apologies for absence that have been received will be noted at this point.

2  Minutes 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
meeting held on 18 November 2014.

3  Urgent Items 
The Chairman will announce any urgent items that due to special circumstances 
are to be dealt with under agenda item 11 below relating to Late Items.

4  Declarations of Interests 
Members and officers are reminded to make any declarations of disclosable 
pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests they may have in respect of 
matters on the agenda for this meeting.

5  Public Question Time 
The procedure for submitting public questions in writing by no later than 12:00 on 
Monday 16 March 2015 is available upon request to Member Services (the contact 
details for which appear on the front page of this agenda). 

6  Community Safety Partnership Task and Finish Group Final Report (Pages 1 
- 4)
The committee is requested to consider and endorse the key points concluded 
from this review. 

7  Tourism Task and Finish Group Final Report (Pages 5 - 22)
The committee is requested to consider the findings of the Task and Finish Group 
and recommend to Cabinet accordingly.

8  Committee Audio/Visual Recording Task and Finish Group Final Report 
(Pages 23 - 26)
The committee is requested to consider the findings of the Task and Finish Group 
and recommend to Cabinet accordingly.

Public Document Pack



9  Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2014/15 Annual Report (Pages 27 - 37)
The committee is asked to consider and agree the 2014/15 Annual Report and to 
recommend it to Council for noting. 

The committee is also asked to delegate powers to the committee’s Chairman to 
sign off the final version of the report prior to its presentation to Council.

10  Reports circulated to Members prior to the meeting 
The committee is requested to consider and note the reports which have been 
emailed to them prior to this meeting: 

 CIP Health Action Plan – review of progress 
 Think Family Neighbourhoods – Selsey project evaluation 
 Community Land Trusts 
 Private Sector Renewal Policy 
 Chichester City Centre Partnership

11  Late Items 
Consideration of any late items as follows:

a) Items added to the agenda papers and made available for public inspection.
b) Items which the chairman has agreed should be taken as matters of 

urgency by reason of special circumstances to be reported at the meeting.
12  Exclusion of the Press and Public 

There are no restricted items for consideration.

NOTES

1. The press and public may be excluded from the meeting during any item of business 
wherever it is likely that there would be disclosure of “exempt information” as defined in 
section 100A of and Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972

2. The press and public may view the appendices relating to reports listed under Part I of the 
agenda which are not included with their copy of the agenda on the Council’s website at 
http://www.chichester.gov.uk/committees.

3. Subject to the provisions allowing the exclusion of the press and public, the photographing, 
filming or recording of this meeting from the public seating area is permitted. To assist with 
the management of the meeting, anyone wishing to do this is asked to inform the chairman 
of the meeting of their intentions before the meeting starts. The use of mobile devices for 
access to social media is permitted, but these should be switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. Those undertaking such activities must do so discreetly and not disrupt the 
meeting, for example by oral commentary, excessive noise, distracting movement or flash 
photography. Filming of children, vulnerable adults or members of the audience who object 
should be avoided. (Standing Order 11.3)

4. Restrictions have been introduced on the distribution of paper copies of longer appendices 
to reports where those appendices are circulated separately from the agenda as follows:

1) Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee, the Cabinet and Senior Officers – 
receive paper copies including the appendices

2) Other Members of the Council – Appendices may be viewed via the Members’ Desktop 
and a paper copy will be available in the Members’ Room at East Pallant House.

http://www.chichester.gov.uk/committee


Chichester District Council

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE         17 March 2015

Report from the Community Safety Partnership Scrutiny
Task & Finish Group

1. Contacts

Mr R Hayes, Chairman of the Community Safety Task & Finish Group
Tel: 01243 371388 Email: rhayes@chichester.gov.uk 

2. Recommendations

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider and endorse 
the key points concluded from this review as set out at paragraph 5.2 in the 
report. 

1) That the proposed priorities for the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 
plan 2015/16 are supported. 

2) That the CSP should consider how they could encourage the amalgamation 
of Rural Watch, Farm Watch and Horse Watch to provide a more 
comprehensive Community Watch service. 

3) That the CSP should focus on utilising technology to effectively and 
efficiently spread community safety information. 

3. Terms of Reference

3.1 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states that all relevant 
authorities have a duty to consider the impact of all their functions and decisions 
on crime and disorder in their local area. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
has a statutory duty in accordance with Sections 19 and 20 of the Police and 
Justice Act 2006 to review the district’s Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 
with the following objectives:

 To hold the CSP to account for its decision making
 To scrutinise the performance of the CSP
 To undertake policy reviews of specific community safety issues

       The purpose of the review was to:

a) To hold the Chichester District Community Safety Partnership to account for 
its decision-making.

b) To scrutinise the performance of the Chichester District Community Safety 
Partnership.

c) To undertake policy reviews of specific crime and disorder issues e.g. 
human trafficking/exploitation.

d) To consider how the Partnership and individual responsible authorities are 
contributing to local joint initiatives and achieving their aims and objectives.

3.2 The outcomes to be achieved at the end of the TFG review were to:

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

mailto:rhayes@chichester.gov.uk


 Review the CSP’s performance over the last year.
 Identification any areas of concern for further in-depth review.
 Input into the strategic direction of the CSP next year

4. Approach to the review

4.1 This review was carried out over two meetings in January and February 2015. 
Members involved in this review were Mrs N Graves, Mrs G Keegan,  Mr R 
Hayes(Chairman),Mr N Thomas  and Mr H Potter. Mrs Apel also attended both 
meetings.

4.2 Ms Bushby, the Community Interventions Manager at CDC presented the 
Annual Report 2013/14, the Performance Plan 2014/15 and progress as at the 
third quarter, the Crime Summary for the 2014 calendar year and the Budget 
2014/15.

4.3 Members noted the wide range of project work undertaken not just to reduce 
crime and victimisation but work such as raising awareness of Human 
Trafficking; reducing community tensions at neighbour and community level and 
working with 22 families in the Think Family project and in two neighbourhoods 
in the city.

4.4 Chief Inspector Burtenshaw the Police Commander for Chichester district 
presented the crime issues for the area and informed members that Chichester 
was the best performing district in Sussex in resolving crime. He illustrated the 
intelligence led approach to operations targeting individuals and series of 
crimes including the use of tracking equipment which had contributed to the 
high detection rate. Members also probed the impact of decreasing budget and 
were reassured that answering 999 calls, assessing and addressing harm and 
risk was the focus of the force. The importance of effective partnership working 
was also highlighted. 

4.5 Ms King from West Sussex County Council (WSCC) presented an outline of the 
work with the Safer West Sussex Partnership (SWSP) identifying that there is a 
statutory requirement for WSCC to produce an annual Community Safety 
agreement setting out how the partners would work together to deliver their 
agreed priorities. Having described the structures of the partnership she 
identified the influencing factors in setting the priorities which included a 
Strategic Intelligence Assessment; the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Police 
and Crime Plan; national legislation and plans; public consultation, and, the 
priorities of the local CSPs and aligned partnerships. The SSP has proposed 10 
priorities for 2015/16 with two new priorities of Child Sexual Exploitation and 
Preventing Radicalisation.

4.6 Councillor Lintill, the chair of Chichester CSP, told the group about her role as 
one of the Local Authority representatives on the Police and Crime Panel whose 
role it is to scrutinise the key decisions of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
such as the Police and Crime Plan, the budget and precept and key staff 
appointments. The Panel also offered support, advice and consultation on local 
policing matters.

Page 2



4.7 Members were given the chance to comment on the future priorities of the CSP 
using the public consultation survey. After questions and discussion members 
supported the main priorities of the CSP Performance Plan 2015/16 which were 
reducing repeat victims, supporting vulnerable people, reducing crime and 
increasing public confidence. Ms Bushby described the proposed projects which 
would include cybercrime. 

4.8 An example of partnership working in Chichester East was given by Mr P Taylor 
and Ms J Reed of A2Dominion Housing Association. They described work with 
a school to clean up and planting work in an area troubled by antisocial 
behaviour (ASB). The ASB had declined and given the community back a 
pleasant amenity area. Work with a community group was developing a youth 
club at the community centre on the estate which would provide extra youth 
activities. A project called Sport for Social Change had identified unengaged 
young people in the area and encouraged them to get involved with sport, 
culminating in a big activity. 

5. Findings of the review

5.1 The group particularly noted the following:

 Reassurance that good progress had been made in delivering the CSP plan 
priorities in both 2013/14 and 14/15 to date and a measurable impact on 
incidents of crime made.

 Reassurance that Police performance had led to a high level of crime 
detection.

 Reassurance that despite reduced funding and loss of the CSP support staff 
role a good range of relevant projects were being delivered by the 
partnership. 

 Agreement that the ASB coordinator post funded by the CSP and located in 
the police station to provide effective communication links was acknowledged 
as a good prioritising of the funding. 

 Reassurance that WSCC is providing a key role in coordinating the strategic 
county partnership and drawing together the various influences into a 
cohesive set of priorities to guide the activities of local CSPs and partners.

 Reassurance that the Police and Crime Panel was positively engaged in both 
supporting and scrutinising the Police and Crime Commissioners policies.

 That projects to deliver positive activities for young people, and involving 
them to make positive improvements to community facilities were being 
encouraged and actively supported by partners and community groups.

 That emerging issues such as Child Sexual Exploitation and cybercrime were 
being addressed.

 That there was a need to consider ways of amalgamating or joining up the 
rural watch groups such as Farm and Horse Watch to a comprehensive 
community watch. 

 That communication is a key issue in influencing public perceptions of crime 
and the CSP should promote its activity more widely considering the use of 
social media and new technologies.

5.2 The key points and recommendations concluded from this review are:

 That the CSP’s performance over the last year has been effective.

Page 3



 That the proposed priorities for the 2015/16 CSP plan are supported.
 That the CSP should consider how they could encourage the 

amalgamation of Rural Watch, Farm Watch and Horse Watch to provide a 
more comprehensive Community Watch service. 

 That the CSP should focus on utilising technology to effectively and 
efficiently communicate community safety information and promote its 
activity. 

6. Appendices
   

None                 

7. Background Papers

7.1 Minutes of meetings
7.2 CSP Annual report 2013/14, CSP Plan and Budget 2014/15, CSP Plan Q3 

performance report, CSP draft Plan 2015/16

Page 4



Chichester District Council

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                17 March 2015

Report from the Tourism Task and Finish Group

1. Contacts

Gordon McAra – Chairman of the Task and Finish Group
Tel: 01730 815569 Email: gmcara@chichester.gov.uk 

Stephen Oates, Economic Development Manager  
Tel: 01243 534600 Email: soates@chichester.gov.uk 

2. Executive Summary

This report presents the findings and recommendations of the Tourism Task and 
Finish Group. It provides an assessment of the visitor economy in and around the 
District and identifies the variety of disparate organisations involved in supporting 
tourism and delivering tourism services. The report considers the current trends 
and lifestyle considerations affecting the visitor economy and sets out the Group’s 
findings, including the significant opportunities available to drive future growth, and 
recommends a robust and clear course of action to take forward to Cabinet. 

3. Recommendation 

The committee is requested to consider the findings of the Task and 
Finish Group and to recommend to Cabinet that option 4, as set out in section 
8 of this report, be pursued and resources allocated accordingly.

For completeness, and to save having to constantly refer the reader to other 
reports, we have included and summarised much of the information previously 
contained in the progress report to the committee in July 2014.

4. Background

4.1 Chichester District has considerable tourism assets:

 a high quality natural environment that includes the Witterings, a 
natural harbour that is classified as an area of outstanding natural 
beauty, and attractive stretches of the South Downs National Park 

 a 900 year-old cathedral with its towering spire and walled gardens
 the world-renowned Pallant House Gallery
 it is the home of British Polo, hosts Glorious Goodwood - one of the 

most prestigious events in the UK horse-racing calendar – and the 
world’s biggest heritage motor sport event, The Goodwood Revival

 it has the UK’s leading repertory theatre outside the West End
 a popular Marina – the second largest in the UK
 historic market towns
 important National Trust properties

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

mailto:gmcara@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:soates@chichester.gov.uk


 some of the best inshore waters on the South Coast for windsurfing, 
sailing and diving

… and many more features and attributes which, historically, have always 
made the District an attractive place to visit.

However, during the post-war decades, when many other areas were 
actively developing their tourism assets and striving to exploit the burgeoning 
tourism market, Chichester generally chose not to. There was little proactive 
work to attract visitors or to provide infrastructure and facilities to grow and 
support a visitor economy.

In line with lifestyle changes and increases in people’s leisure time, this 
began to change in the late 70s and 80s when the Duke of Richmond 
brought together a number of places of interest and activities, forming the 
Chichester Visitors Group to begin some joined-up thinking and promotion. 
This in turn led to the Council providing tourism information services, together 
with officer and financial resources to develop the District as a destination, 
eventually creating the ‘Visit Chichester’ brand in 2004. 

4.2 There has never been a statutory duty on local authorities to deliver visitor 
services and, following cutbacks in local government funding, in 2009 the 
Council entered into a Destination Management Partnership with Visit 
Chichester (VC), initially providing a modest annual grant each year from 
April 2009 to March 2012, after which point the Council ceased further 
funding. 

4.3 During this time it was anticipated that VC would develop a new approach to 
serving and developing the tourism sector, and would secure alternative and 
new methods of funding to achieve this. A Destination Management Plan for 
the five-year period to 2015 was supported and adopted by the Council in 
2010. Its stated objective being:

‘‘To grow the value of the District’s core tourism assets via greater 
engagement and partnership, through which Chichester District will secure 
an unrivalled reputation for its high-quality landscape, accommodation, 
attractions, public realm, heritage, arts and cultural offer, excellent customer 
care, and a year-round programme of activities and events centred on the 
area’s unique culture and natural environment’’

4.4 However, VC has struggled to make significant strides forward and its 
funding is now generally well below the levels obtained 5 years ago.

4.5 In 2012, the Council also reviewed its provision of Tourist Information 
Services. The TICs in Midhurst and Petworth closed with some aspects of 
the services relocating to alternative outlets. In Chichester the TIC was 
relocated to the Novium museum.

4.6 Tourism is still regarded as a key economic sector and is supported by the 
Council in the emerging Local Plan and through the Economic Development 
Strategy. In September 2013 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee received 
a presentation from representatives of Visit Chichester at which the issues 
facing the organisation and delivery of its business plan were set out to 

Page 6



members. Following this a Task and Finish Group was convened in January 
2014 to:

 assess the opportunities to develop inbound tourism to the District and 
to expand the visitor economy

 to understand our existing and potential tourist market by identifying 
the area’s different assets and why people visit

 establish whether the current DMO is fit for purpose and to consider 
any in-kind support which the Council can provide to VC to become 
more effective and, in so doing, to assess the VC model against other 
Destination Management Organisation (DMO) models 

 consider what options are available to us going forward to assist in 
facilitating a strong DMO, in order to:

o raise the profile of the District as a visitor destination
o manage the visitor economy
o exploit the economic potential to create jobs
o develop a successful year-round tourism offer
o exploit the potential for inward investment to the District

 consider what ‘destinations’ Chichester is made up of and to consider 
whether ‘Chichester District’ is a recognisable destination, or whether 
it should be part of a wider destination; and whether there is an 
opportunity to work with other authorities for a wider tourism offer

 understand the purpose of tourism information services and how this 
is delivered

4.7 The group consists of Mr G McAra (Chair), Mrs C Apel, Mr N Thomas, Mrs B 
Tinson and Mrs N Graves.

4.8 In tandem with the work of the Task and Finish Group the Council has 
included support for the visitor economy in its Corporate Plan 2015-2018 
stating under the Economy Priority the objective to “Promote Chichester 
District as a visitor and cultural destination”

In line with this the Council has reviewed the progress and initial findings of 
the Task and Finish Group and has provisionally allocated funding to 
undertake research to provide baseline data for any future tourism strategy. 

4.9 The importance of tourism to the local economy is also recognised by 
neighbouring authorities, and members will recall that during the course of 
the Task & Finish Group’s work two other studies on the visitor economy 
emerged. One is a study of the visitor economy across the Coastal West 
Sussex Partnership (CWSP) area, and the other is a new targeted marketing 
initiative through West Sussex County Council (WSCC).

The draft report on the CWSP study has been presented to the five 
authorities who commissioned the study. It provides some useful data, ideas 
and clear pointers on how to develop the visitor economy within the CWSP 
area, including Chichester.

Page 7



WSCC are progressing their ‘Beautiful Outdoors’ project which is a 
standalone project promoting ‘active tourism’ targeted at a specific Greater 
London demographic

Reference to the findings of the CWSP study and the Beautiful Outdoors 
project is made throughout this report

5 Current Tourism Services in and around Chichester District

Organisations in the District involved in Tourism

5.1 There are several organisations in the District supporting the visitor economy    
to varying degrees. Some include the visitor economy as part of their overall 
work, while others undertake specific activities to support tourism in individual 
towns, areas, or sectors within the industry. Furthermore, some have modest 
financial and personnel resources, while others are entirely voluntary.

5.2 In brief, these organisations include:

Visit Chichester - Visit Chichester was set-up as a public-private membership 
organisation headed by a non-executive Board of directors with the aim that 
directors should be from local accommodation providers, visitor attractions, 
Chichester Chamber of Commerce & Industry (CCCI) and CDC. The board is 
currently weighted in favour of the public sector. There are two directors 
representing the visitor attraction/events sector. All directors are volunteers. 
There is one part time member of staff working on social media and some 
paid consultancy. There is some private sector buy-in, but resources are 
extremely limited with a budget of only c. £70,000 per annum. Less than half 
of this comes from membership. With funding generated through sale of 
advertising space, VC produces a local accommodation guide and operates 
the Visit Chichester website. The main aim of Visit Chichester is to work 
collaboratively with industry partners to position Chichester District as a 
premier holiday destination on the south coast

Midhurst Tourism Partnership – The Partnership is made up entirely from 
volunteers. It has a constitution but no assets. It produces brochures funded 
by a combination of advertising income and local funding (e.g. from the Town 
Council, SDNPA, etc.). It is currently producing a new ‘Visit Midhurst’ website 
with funding from Chichester District Council. The Town Council have always 
provided a member on the group (currently Gordon McAra) and historically 
have provided secretarial support

Petworth Business Association - The PBA is a very active, but entirely 
voluntary organisation. It absorbed the Petworth Tourism Partnership a 
couple of years ago so now undertakes any work in the town to attract visitors 
and to provide visitor information. With support from the District Council and 
with funding generated through sale of advertising space, it is currently 
producing a new brochure. It also operates the Discover Petworth website

Selsey Business Partnership – This is a voluntary group supporting local 
Selsey businesses. One of their key aims is ‘To promote the branding of 
Selsey in order to encourage more visitors into Selsey’, but there are not any 
resources directly allocated towards tourism

Page 8



Chichester Chamber of Commerce and Industry – This is a membership 
organisation which actively supports businesses in the City and beyond. It 
provides a ‘voice’ on local business issues including tourism and used to 
have a seat on the board of VC. A key aim is to promote Chichester and to 
encourage more visitors, but there are not any resources directly allocated 
towards tourism

Chichester Visitors Group – This group was first established by the Duke of 
Richmond in the 1980s and is a loose partnership of visitor attractions and 
places of interest. They produce an annual attractions leaflet, funded by the 
individual members, which is widely distributed around the district and beyond 

Chichester BID (City Centre Partnership) – The BID is closely involved with 
the City’s visitor economy. Their stated aim is to “make the most of the many 
assets the City has to offer, including the diverse mix of retail, local heritage 
and culture.” Each of their four main strategic objectives, as below, contribute 
to developing the conditions necessary to grow the visitor economy, and 
significant funding is directed towards these objectives:

o Improve the marketing and promotion of our City Centre.
o Improve the organisation of our City Centre.
o Improve the quality of the environment of our City Centre.
o Improve the safety and security of our City Centre

Chichester Harbour Conservancy - Chichester Harbour AONB has 
approximately 1.5 million people visiting each year. Walking, cycling, 
photography, drawing and painting, and bird-watching are just some of the 
interests of these visitors, plus of course the many people who visit and use 
the harbour for sailing and boating. There are strong indications that the 
number of people coming to Chichester Harbour AONB will continue to 
increase. The Conservancy manages the visitor infrastructure, visitor 
numbers and activities within Chichester Harbour AONB and has funding to 
do so.

Manhood Peninsula Partnership – A community led initiative, which brings 
together key organisations and local groups - ranging from local authorities 
to the RSPB to the Environment Agency – to balance ecological, 
environmental, infrastructure and economic issues. It is funded by the public 
sector and one of its key objectives is to grow and develop the visitor 
economy across the Peninsula. Its recent conference largely focussed on the 
potential to grow its visitor economy 

Neighbouring Authorities and Organisations Involved in Tourism

5.3 Each of Chichester District’s neighbouring and overlapping authorities are 
also involved in the management and promotion of tourism for their specific 
areas. In recent years, each authority has made substantial reductions in 
resources allocated to support the visitor economy and there are significant 
variations between authorities in the scope of their support and the level of 
resources allocated.  There is usually no longer one department and one 
budget to support tourism activities, and what remains is now spread 

Page 9



amongst various council departments. The main expenditure is on general 
marketing activities

Arun District Council - At present, the Council does not have a tourism 
strategy or action plan. ‘Sussex by the Sea’ is the destination brand for Arun 
District. Their investment in tourism (staff and resources) includes one full-
time officer and other time and resources allocated to PR, marketing and 
events. Their spend is estimated at just below £100k.

Worthing Borough Council - Visit Worthing has a full-time tourism officer and 
a tourism budget of around £58,000, although this excludes venues 
promotion and marketing, and events. The Council is recruiting an Events Co-
ordinator to operate across Worthing and Adur.

Horsham District Council – No full-time resources are allocated to the visitor 
economy, although one officer within economic development covers support 
to tourism businesses. They operate one visitor information centre

Havant Borough Council – The Council co-ordinates a ‘Visit Havant’ website, 
aimed at serving visitors to Hayling Island and Emsworth. They offer some 
visitor information services on Hayling Island and have an officer shared with 
East Hampshire District Council focusing on tourism development and the 
websites. In addition, they are working on links with Portsmouth City Council

East Hampshire District Council – There are no full-time resources, and 
tourism activities are promoted through a partnership of the visitor 
accommodation providers, visitor attractions and hospitality businesses in the 
district, co-ordinated by the Council in conjunction with Havant BC.

West Sussex County Council – West Sussex County Council do not have any 
full-time staff resources allocated to tourism. However, significant staff time 
and financial resources have been allocated to their ‘Beautiful Outdoors’ 
project 

South Downs National Park - As a National Park, the SDNPA has 
statutory purposes and socio-economic responsibilities, as specified in the 
Environment Act of 1995, to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, 
wildlife and cultural heritage of the area, and to promote opportunities for the 
understanding and enjoyment of the special qualities of the Park by the 
public. Much of their work is therefore inherently directed towards the visitor 
economy. They have one full-time officer focussing on sustainable tourism, 
and within their headquarters in Midhurst they operate the South Downs 
Centre - a visitor interpretation and advice centre, part-funded by CDC.

The Private Sector

5.4 Private sector businesses working in the visitor economy include 
accommodation providers, places of interest and attractions, event operators, 
food and drink businesses, transport operators, conference and hospitality 
providers, and many other leisure, hospitality and retail businesses.

Page 10



Some of these organisations provide input and time to many of the 
organisations listed above, and some provide financial input mainly through 
modest membership fees and/or through the purchase of advertising space 
in publications in a variety of often overlapping publications and online 
platforms.

In many cases, within their marketing activities, private sector businesses 
and organisations are also undertaking wider marketing of the District and 
surrounding area, further duplicating the work of the many organisations 
above.

6 Understanding the Visitor

6.1 It is important to consider how ‘tourism’ has changed and is continuing to 
change – and the challenges this presents and the opportunities this brings. 
Each of us take holidays, short breaks, day trips and other ‘tourism activities’. 
If we think about how we have taken holidays, breaks and day trips over the 
years, it is very likely that what we do in 2015 is very different to what we did 
in 10, 20 or 30 years ago. 

There will have been many changes, but a few might include

 Less importance attached to an ‘annual holiday’ 
 Individual breaks are shorter and we are taking more of them
 More day trips being taken
 Visits to friends and relatives that are essentially holidays
 We are far more likely to book online … and ‘last minute’ is often the 

norm
 More ‘health’ and ‘active’ tourism - looking for breaks that exhilarate 

and help keep us fit, or help us to pursue a sporting interest
 More ‘skills’ and ‘cultural’ tourism to learn new things
 Fewer week/two-week trips to seaside destinations
 More short breaks to towns and cities
 Trips and holidays centred on festivals and events
 Holidays and short breaks revolving around specific interests and 

‘themes’ such as culture, heritage, water sports, art, music, cycling, 
walking, sport, food and drink, and so on

(Source: Visit England)

Looking ahead, the prospects for tourism look strong, with potential for 
growth in the domestic market, the UK inbound market and in business 
tourism. The most significant of these is domestic tourism and the Visit 
England study ‘Domestic Leisure Tourism Trends for the Next Decade’ 
presents a key source of data. When considering the Districts assets against 
this, Chichester and the surrounding area is well-placed to exploit many more 
opportunities to grow the visitor economy. 

6.2 However, there are challenges too. While we don’t have the figures 
specifically for Chichester, overall visitor satisfaction with West Sussex is 
among the lowest in the country. 

Page 11



To begin our understanding of how to drive tourism growth and how to 
manage tourism resources to assist this, it is important to understand some 
of the ‘satisfaction’ drivers which will impact on our ability to provide the 
conditions to attract and retain visitors. These include:

 Good quality accommodation
 Accommodation that offers value for money
 Easily accessible for those with impairments
 A place where we feel safe and secure
 Unspoilt countryside
 Good value for money generally
 Clean and well-maintained beaches
 Clean and tidy environment
 Good quality food, drink and dining
 Beaches which are safe and suitable for bathing
 Welcoming and friendly people
 Variety of accommodation to choose from that suits my needs
 Interesting towns and villages to visit
 Easy to find useful information about the destination when planning
 Easy to book your trip/different parts of your trip in advance
 A destination that is not too expensive to get to
 Attractive/well maintained town/city centre
 Opportunities to eat/drink local food and produce
 Very high levels of customer service
 Clear signposting that helps you find your way around the destination
 Wide range of attractions and things to do
 Opportunities to see famous buildings and monuments
 Easy to find useful information about the destination when you're there
 Overall availability of deals and discounts for the destination
 A destination that doesn't take too long to get to
 Availability of reasonably priced car parking
 Opportunities to visit museums/galleries and contemporary arts
 Good range of shopping opportunities
 Easy to get around by public transport
 Availability of individual/independent local shops
 A destination that is easy to get to by public transport
 For countryside breaks, a good range of outdoor activities
 Good range of water-based/beach activities
 Availability of festivals, music, sporting and cultural events
 Good nightlife

(Source: Visit England)

7 The Economic Impact of Tourism

7.1 It is reasonable to ask why Tourism should be a ‘special case’ and why, in the 
past, it received the seemingly high levels of support and backing from the 
public sector. The value of tourism is both direct and indirect. There is much 
that a community or district such as Chichester has in terms of infrastructure, 
amenities, community assets and environmental assets that the indigenous 

Page 12



population enjoy and benefit from, that simply wouldn’t exist (or would at least 
be in a poorer form) if ‘Tourism’ didn’t exist.

7.2 In a wider context, tourism is essential to England’s economy.  This ‘visitor 
economy’ which covers leisure tourism, business trips and visiting friends 
and relatives, generates £106billion each year, employs 2.6million people 
and supports thousands of businesses, both directly and indirectly. It also 
has a strong and vital interdependent relationship with farming, transport, 
retailing, cultural assets, coastal and maritime activities, sport, museums and 
the arts, hospitality and other sectors.

7.3 For the first time, Government has a tourism strategy that reaches across 
Whitehall, looking at policies from a tourism perspective. Funding through the 
Regional Growth Fund has been allocated to Visit England who is tasked to 
work with the tourism industry to deliver a 10-year strategic framework for 
tourism. This sets out ways the industry can work together to deliver a 5% 
growth in value, year-on-year, over the next decade. This would result in an 
additional £50billion in expenditure and the creation of 225,000 jobs.

7.4 There are substantial opportunities to increase the value of tourism to the 
District. In particular, the growth in short-breaks in England provides a 
growing market, and there is a tremendous opportunity to exploit the potential 
for exponential increases in spend by turning day visitors into staying visitors.

Tourism in Chichester District

7.5 The South East attracts the highest tourism spend for any region outside 
London. In Chichester District, tourism and leisure generates significant 
direct expenditure and is the largest private sector employer. According to 
Visit England data, tourism produces the following in Chichester District:

 5.2 million day trips each year generating a spend of £144million
 405,000 ‘staying’ trips each year, equating to 1.3 million ‘bed nights’, 

and generating a spend of £75million
 c. 7,500 jobs in tourism and leisure, plus numerous ‘support’ jobs

(Please note: Data produced by Visit Chichester shows higher figures than 
these, but we have been unable to reconcile them to the Visit England 
figures)

7.6 These figures may look impressive, but we’re merely scratching the surface! 
… In 2013:

 British residents spent £18.7 billion on 297 million nights away from 
home in England 

 66,400 accommodation businesses provided 2.7 million bed-spaces
 £46.0 billion was spent on 1.4 billion domestic tourism day trips

The potential market is huge, and when one breaks these figures down to the 
share already being captured by other South Coast destinations (e.g. 
Brighton, Bournemouth, Isle of Wight, New Forest, Kent) there is a clear and 
growing market for holidays and short breaks in areas such as ours. 

Page 13



8 Key Findings

8.1 It is clear that there are a number of key criteria required to drive forward our 
visitor economy. Below, we have set out a summary of some of the findings 
from the Task and Finish Group’s work. However, it is worth quoting two 
sections form the CWSP study which neatly summarises best practice:

“… there are common ingredients for success. These include: focusing on a 
destination area that has resonance with visitors; active engagement of a 
strong and sizeable private sector; effective collaboration between public 
sector partners; a clarity of focus that makes best use of the resources that 
are available; and strong and clear leadership.”

The study further lists the criteria that are key to success:

 A DMO that reflects a sensible destination area
 A private sector of sufficient scale, with enough ‘big players’ that are 

prepared to invest
 Local authorities that can work together and provide sustained funding 

over the medium term
 A DMO that is focused and not trying to do too much with the 

available resource
 A DMO that can deliver strong leadership

The presentation to the Overview and Scrutiny on 22nd July 2014, by the 
Chief Executive of Visit Durham also gave a clear steer on the key indicators 
and measures needed to develop a visitor economy, including:

 A destination is one that the consumer recognises and likes to visit
 Destination management only happens when the public sector is an 

investing partner
 Destination management is best led by the private sector with 

significant public sector involvement
 An evidence base and putting your customers first is the best basis for 

a destination management organisation
 If a positive and proactive partnership is in place it will get the 

destination management it needs

Understanding the Visitor

8.2 All of us are changing our ‘tourism habits’. Lifestyle and work influences, new 
technologies, and a blurring of the lines between work and leisure time mean 
those working in and supporting the visitor economy have to be responsive 
and agile to change, and need to develop new approaches to develop new 
markets and grow new customers.

8.3 It is clear that Chichester District and the surrounding areas have a lot to 
offer, both in terms of changing holiday patterns and in terms of what the 
customer wants. However, in a competitive environment with other parts of 
the South Coast and other parts of the country improving their visitor offering, 
it won’t happen by chance. It will require leadership, management and visitor 
marketing expertise.

Page 14



The Current Organisation and Management of the Visitor Economy

8.4 There is a plethora of organisations, partnerships and groups involved in 
promoting and supporting tourism and the visitor economy.

8.5 Much of the effort, time and resources put into tourism is quite inward 
looking, thinking about what a town or an area has to offer, rather than what 
the customer actually wants. There is often an assumption that potential 
visitors will already know or quickly identify with an individual town or 
location, when in fact this is far from the case. For example, we think first of 
‘The Lake District’, the ‘Isle of Wight’, the ‘New Forest’, ‘Cornwall’, the ‘Peak 
District’, and so on, well before drilling down to the individual locations and 
activities within.

8.6 There is no consistency of approach or coherent strategy.

8.7 It is doubtful if many know about, or have regard to, the Districts’ Destination 
Management Plan.

8.8 There is much duplication of people, time and financial resources.

8.9 There is very limited leadership and few professional ‘people’ resources with 
commercial tourism experience and expertise.

8.10 With the resources available to individual organisations, there has been little 
or no research to understand the opportunities and to understand ‘the visitor’ 
- who they are, where they come from, why they visit and why they don’t visit.

Visit Chichester

8.11 Visit Chichester was set-up as a public-private membership organisation 
headed by a non-executive Board of directors with the aim that directors 
should be from local accommodation providers, visitor attractions, Chichester 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry (CCCI) and CDC. The board is currently 
weighted in favour of the public sector. There is one director representing the 
visitor attraction/events sector and one representing accommodation 
providers. All directors are volunteers. There is one part time member of staff 
working on social media and some paid consultancy. Resources are 
extremely limited with a budget of c. £70,000 per annum

8.12 While welcoming any work undertaken to promote tourism, tourism 
businesses consulted do not regard the DMO, in its current form, to be vital 
to their business and several have drifted away from close involvement with 
the DMO. 

8.13 The organisation has limited visibility and profile, and some accommodation 
providers in the District are not clear about the roles it performs. 

8.14 VC places a lot of importance in developing its website and social media 
feeds. Despite this, the website does not provide a sufficiently good or 
responsive service for today’s customers. However, the website is being fully 

Page 15



overhauled but much of the work is being undertaken on a voluntary 
capacity. 

8.15 Following discussions with VC, members concluded that:

 VC appears to be an operational organisation with no defined 
strategic vision or direction and, despite best endeavours, through 
lack of resources they have not been able to drive the 2010 
Destination Management Plan 

 It has a fragmented approach and is a fragile structure - It needs 
robustness

 It has insufficient money to effectively market, manage and build the 
destination

 It carries out limited consultation with users or providers
 Their presentation to the Group gave no indication of any move or 

aspiration to restructure or consider alternative ways to serve and 
develop the visitor economy

The members also felt that the name ‘Visit Chichester’ is a barrier to 
engendering a united approach to driving the visitor economy across the 
district.

Neighbouring Authorities

8.16 Initial discussions with the tourism officer at Arun District Council and with the 
economic development service at Horsham District Council have indicated a 
willingness to consider whether some or all of our three districts might 
comprise an attractive visitor proposition to market and manage.

Through the work we have been involved with on the CWSP study, there is a 
clear desire among local authorities within the CWSP – Chichester, Arun, 
Worthing, Adur and WSCC – to work together. In particular, Arun clearly 
recognise the advantages of joining resources and see the benefits of 
working more closely with Chichester.

There have not, for the purposes of this work, been any detailed discussions 
with authorities to the west or with SDNPA, but clear opportunities exist.

The Destination

8.17 When considering a destination to visit, visitors do not concern themselves 
with administrative boundaries when making their choices. However, VC’s 
focus is purely on Chichester District and neighbouring authorities focus is 
just on their districts. There is no evidence that anyone has considered 
whether these are the optimum ‘destinations’ to serve, or whether there is 
naturally a narrower or wider destination that would best attract and serve 
visitors.

8.18 Visit England define a destination as follows: A destination is an area of 
visitor appeal which includes attractions, accommodation and support 
services. It may be defined by physical, thematic or administrative 
boundaries and it embraces a set of distinctive images and qualities that give 

Page 16



it a brand identity recognisable by potential visitors. Destinations should be 
places with which tourism stakeholders have a natural affinity and within 
which it is practicable for them to work together.

8.19 A key consideration of whether an area can and should be managed as a 
destination in its own right is whether it has a clear and distinctive identity by 
which it can be promoted and described to visitors and recognised by them. 
However, as implied by the above definition, destinations can only work 
effectively if they are meaningful to the tourism businesses, visitors and other 
players, including the local authorities and communities, who need to work 
together to manage them.

Creating a Viable and Successful Destination

8.20 It is important to consider what activities are required in an area to maximise 
the impact on the local economy from visitors. These can be broken down 
into six inter-related sub groups:

8.20.1  Destination Management or A ‘Joined-Up’ Approach – This is the  
process of leading, influencing and coordinating the management of 
all the aspects of a destination that contribute to a visitor’s experience, 
taking account of the needs of visitors, local residents, businesses and 
the environment. 

8.20.2 Attracting Visitors - Is primarily about marketing the destination in a 
variety of forms, including online, social media, PR, and advertising 
campaigns, as well as generating activities, events and reasons for 
visitors to choose the destination, and linking in to national initiatives, 
many of which provide match funding. This cannot be undertaken in a 
piecemeal fashion and requires a robust, professional approach with 
aspirational targets

8.20.3 Inward Investment and Improving the Infrastructure –  
Engendering a culture across all stakeholders to consider the visitor 
economy at every level – Ensuring the planning process is 
sympathetic and responsive to the visitor economy; developing and 
providing sufficient accommodation stock of the right kind; sufficient 
access to parking, public conveniences, public transport and other 
facilities; cleanliness of the environment; and seeking ways to support 
new attractions, events and activities to broaden the destination’s 
appeal.

8.20.4 Welcome and Ease of Movement – Ensuring that, whichever way 
visitors enter the destination, they feel welcome and comfortable in 
the local environment, and they are able to move around in the most 
efficient way. This makes a big difference to a visitor’s experience. 
This includes full customer orientation within the destination, placing 
the needs of visitors as a key consideration in all decision making.

8.20.5 Extending Stay – Making good links and joint packages between 
attractions, accommodation providers, shops and restaurants to 
encourage longer visits; and generating activities and events to 

Page 17



encourage longer stays. We know that the longer visitors stay the 
more they spend into the local economy. 

8.20.6 Return Visits - Getting the previous five right has a big impact on this,
 but can be enhanced through loyalty schemes, offers and specialist 
events.

Destination Management Organisation Models

8.21 There is a difference between destination management organisations (which 
coordinate, manage and market a destination) and simply a destination 
organisation (which is principally involved in marketing). Crucially, destination 
management includes the planning, development and marketing of a 
destination as well as how it is managed physically, financially, operationally 
and in other ways.

8.22 The size, form, functions and governance of destination management 
organisations vary across the country. They may be a single organisation, 
such as a local authority, or can be an informal partnership or a legal entity, 
such as a community interest company, that includes representation from 
both the private and public sectors:

8.23 A successful DMO will demonstrate strong private sector involvement, and 
many DMOs, but by no means all, are private-sector lead. To be successful a 
DMO needs drive and appropriate experience within its personnel and, above 
all, strong leadership.

8.24 Visit England cite This is Durham, Visit Manchester, Shakespeare’s England, 
Visit Kent, Visit Isle of Wight, Visit York and Visit Winchester as examples of 
DMOs working well.

Tourist information Services

8.25 With the move to mobile technology, traditional TIC services are changing. 
However, TICs maintain an important role for signposting and leaflets, and 
Chichester’s TIC still performs an important frontline role as the contact point 
for all incoming enquiries, handling all phone calls for VC. (The TIC phone 
number is the contact for this area on the VC website.) Additionally, visitors 
still appreciate a staffed TIC and Chichester’s TIC has an established 
business making bookings for accommodation providers, events and local 
attractions, which it is developing further. The TIC is likely to grow in 
importance with any increase in visitor numbers to the area, so the Group 
considers that the future of tourist information services should be integral to 
any wider strategy on destination management.

Funding

8.26 None of this will go anywhere if there is not the funding to drive the 
aspirations. There must be a clear articulation of the levels of funding 
required and potential sources. In going forward, any new strategy must not 
be frightened of proposing high aspirations and sufficient funding to match.

Page 18



8.27 The Task and Finish Group have not looked in detail at the potential for the 
Council to allocate funding to support any new visitor economy strategy, and 
is disappointed that the CWSP study has not looked at funding models.

There needs to be an assessment of existing expenditure on tourism 
(including people resources) among all the different organisations currently 
supporting tourism, which could be pooled. Similarly, there needs to be an 
assessment of the potential funding from the private sector and other 
sources, and to research new models for funding

In this regard we consider there should be an analysis of the potential for a 
Tourism Business Improvement District (TBID) across any defined 
destination and to open-up discussions with potential partners and the 
industry accordingly.

9 Proposals 

9.1 The Task and Finish Group recognise that there are various options going 
forward and set out below are 4 options for consideration: 

1. Do Nothing. 
This not considered appropriate as the Group are concerned that, in its 
current form, VC does not substantially raise the profile of the district as a 
visitor destination, or strategically manage the visitor economy to fully 
exploit the economic potential to create jobs. Therefore, the significant 
potential to grow the visitor economy and to grow jobs is unlikely to be 
achieved

2.  To continue providing the current level of strategic and officer support to 
the industry, and some additional funding to provide data and research to 
better inform the Council’s strategies and to assist those currently 
supporting tourism.
Again, the significant potential to grow the visitor economy and to grow 
jobs is unlikely to be achieved.

3. To accept the proposals as set out in the CWSP study and, in 
conjunction with the neighbouring authorities involved in that study, 
discuss how the proposals might best be achieved. 
We believe the approach and the aspirations emerging from that study 
again fall short, and feel there is much more that could be gained through 
a more robust and determined approach.

4. Within CDC set-out a brief but clear 3 to 5 year plan which sets the 
aspiration, establishes the baseline information and then leads the 
initiative required to bring partners together who will then be able to move 
forward under one robust and coherent strategy. The outline plan will 
state the potential to attract new visitors, to support and grow tourism 
businesses, to grow jobs, to grow the economy, and to attract inward 
investment if the industry is prepared to join forces. 
For CDC, this work will require:

Page 19



 Officer time to manage the provision of baseline research and to 
prepare the outline plan

 Member and officer time to assess the practicalities of using 
existing tourism delivery organisations and to negotiate their use 
accordingly

 Member and officer time to engage our neighbouring authorities
 Member and officer time to work with tourism businesses and to 

identify and engage leaders to take this work forward
 Financial resources and officer time to consider what sources of 

Council or other public funding are available, which could be used 
to leverage significant additional sums from the private sector, and 
to assess the potential for a TBID

9.2 The Group recommends that the Committee recommends to Cabinet that 
option 4 be pursued and resources be allocated accordingly.

10. Outcomes to be achieved

10.1 Improved support to the tourism industry and the development of the 
District’s visitor economy.

10.2 A clear and cohesive ‘destination’ identified.

10.3 A robust and determined partnership between Chichester and neighbouring 
authorities, and with private sector businesses, all working together with the 
current plethora of disparate organisations merged under one united 
cohesive brand.

10.4 A strong, well-supported and professionally managed Destination 
Management Organisation.

10.5 Greatly improved leadership for the visitor economy locally, and successful 
management and marketing of the area as an attractive, popular and 
competitive UK and South Coast destination.

10.6 New jobs; inward investment in new infrastructure, facilities, attractions and 
events; and a stronger year-round visitor economy.

10.7 Clear targets and KPIs to measure performance and to assist with driving 
outputs.

11. Resource and legal implications

11.1 The Council has already recognised the importance of the visitor economy in 
the Corporate Plan 2015-2018 and some initial resources towards research 
and data have provisionally been allocated.

11.2 The further resources which may be required will vary depending on the final 
route taken. However, at a minimum we envisage that some significant 
officer time will be necessary to instigate the search for leadership and 
participation from the private sector and from other authorities.

11.3 At this stage there are no further resource or legal implications.

Page 20



12.  Consultation

12.1 The T&F Group has received a number of presentations and considered 
various pieces of evidence. These have included:

 A discussion paper on the present position and the opportunities 
available to develop the district’s tourism offering

 A presentation on the tourism marketplace, the wider visitor economy 
and the potential for tourism to grow the local economy 

 A presentation from Visit England on the role of destination 
management organisations and the various models that can be 
applied

 A presentation from SDNPA
 A presentation from the Chief Executive of Visit Durham
 Insights on future trends in tourism, tourism monitors, and numerous 

research papers and statistics from Visit England
 A presentation from Visit Chichester
 A discussion with the Council’s former Front of House Officer who 

services the Tourist Information functions at the Novium museum.

Consultation

12.2 Individual members and officers from the Group have also:

 Met with representatives from businesses and organisations in the 
District’s tourism sector including Bunn Leisure, Chichester City 
Centre Partnership, Chichester Festival Theatre, Fishbourne Roman 
Palace, Goodwood and the Weald and Downland Open Air Museum 

 Met with Visit England’s Head of Destination Management
 Met with the Chairman of the City Centre BID
 Attended a seminar on TBIDs
 Worked with other authorities on the CSWP study 
 Liaised with WSCC on their Beautiful Outdoors project
 Undertaken a walk-about  tour of Chichester to consider the city from 

a visitor’s viewpoint
 Attended the LGA Conference on Culture, Sport and Tourism to 

obtain insights on successful local authority-led tourism
 Met with officers from Arun District Council and Horsham District 

Council

13. Community impact and corporate risks 

13.1 The aim of the review is to have a positive impact on the visitor economy 
and, in turn, the wider economy in our district.

13.2 The main risk to this Council is a loss of economic and community benefits if 
Visit Chichester fails and no action is taken to replace or improve it. 

Page 21



14. Other Implications

Yes No
Crime & Disorder: 

Climate Change: 

Human Rights and Equality Impact: 

Safeguarding: 

Other (Please specify): eg Biodiversity 

15. Appendices
None

16. Background Papers
 Tourism Task and Finish Group Progress Report – 3rd July 2014

Tourism Task and Finish Group Progress Report – 18th November 2014
Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday 
22 July 2014 at 11:30am

Page 22



Chichester District Council

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE      17 March 2015

Report of the Committee Audio System and Recording Meetings 
Task and Finish Group

1. Contacts

Report Author:
Mr Simon Lloyd-Williams, Chairman of the Group 
Tel: 01243 792159 E-mail: slloyd-williams@chichester.gov.uk  

2. Recommendation to CABINET

2.1. That a new microphone system be purchased with the capability of making 
audio recordings for council use and for publication online.

2.2. That a one year pilot be approved to audio record and publish Council, 
Cabinet, Planning and Overview and Scrutiny meetings online. 

3. Background

3.1 A previous scrutiny task and finish group met during 2012 and produced a 
protocol for audio recording of certain Council meetings and recommended to 
Cabinet that a pilot be undertaken to assess the value of recording meetings. 
Cabinet did not support this recommendation.

3.2 At Council on 23 September 2014, when considering a recommendation from 
Cabinet regarding Government regulations on openness of Local Government, 
including a requirement to allow any member of the public to take photographs, 
audio record or film proceedings of all meetings, excluding Part 2 agenda items, 
Mr Ransley reminded the Council of the previous proposal to audio record 
certain meetings which had failed to gain majority support. He was concerned 
that the Council would not have its own full record of proceedings to rebut any 
misrepresentation or out-of-context use of press or public recordings. Council 
members agreed and asked him to bring forward for consideration a further 
proposal on recording meetings.

3.3 Due to the ongoing limited life span of the microphone system, £70,000 
provision has been made within the Council’s Asset Replacement Programme 
(ARP) for a like-for-like replacement in 2015/16. The ARP will be considered by 
Cabinet in February 2015 as part of the budget spending plans. Following the 
considerations and recommendations from the previous Task and Finish Group, 
it would seem appropriate to consider all options and costs in order to future 
proof any replacement equipment. 

3.4 The Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 18 November 2014 agreed that as 
Members are the primary users of the microphone system, a task and finish 
group be set up to consider options around a replacement microphone/audio 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8

mailto:slloyd-williams@chichester.gov.uk


system and to reconsider future recording of meetings.

3.5 The purpose of the review was to explore the desirability and feasibility of:

a) Audio recording meetings or audio visual recordings of the Council, 
Cabinet and Committees.

b) Making these recordings available on the Council’s website taking 
account of:

i. Costs (not just the initial cost of installing equipment, but also on-going 
costs, such as editing and summarising) and added value, so that 
these can be balanced against other priorities.

ii. Experience of other Councils, particularly in relation to web-casting, 
including information about viewing figures, public response, and 
demand.

iii. Legal implications, such as data protection and human rights. 

and based on previous research carried out.

4. Outcomes to be achieved

4.1 A replacement microphone system to deliver the needs of the Council over the 
next 10 years.

4.2 Options on whether to resource future audio recording or webcasting of the 
Council’s meetings.

5. Proposal

5.1. Members considered options for replacement of the microphone system. 

5.2. The group considered options for webcasting meetings but decided against 
introducing this due to costs, resource requirements and a perceived lack of 
value for money. 

5.3. The group recommended that a one year pilot be undertaken to audio record 
and publish Council, Cabinet, Planning and Overview and Scrutiny meeting 
audio records online be approved. 

6. Alternatives that have been considered

6.1. A webcasting proposal from Public-i was considered by the group, with pricing 
and specification.

6.2. WSCC was consulted to establish whether any shared arrangement could be 
progressed. However they are still in the process of removing asbestos from 
their Council Chamber and will not be updated their webcasting system at this 
time. This option was therefore not progressed.

Page 24



7. Resource and legal implications

7.1. £70,000 has been set aside in the Asset Replacement Plan for replacement of 
the Council’s microphone system.

7.2. Server costs and support over 5 years - £10k.

7.3. Template design and development £3-£5k.

7.4. There will be 5-7 days of Webteam staff time to cover web design, development, 
deployment, configuration, training, server build, security testing and sign off. 
Member Services officers will set up the audio system at the beginning of the 
meeting and download the record at the end.

7.5. Costs at 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4 will be met from existing service budgets.

8. Consultation

8.1. Members were all invited to attend microphone system demonstrations to allow 
them involvement in deciding the specification of the future system.

8.2. A member of the task and finish group may wish to be a representative on the 
project group which will consider the procurement of the microphones/audio 
system.

9. Community impact and corporate risks 

9.1. An audio record of the Council’s main meetings published online will allow local 
people to have access to and understanding of the Council’s decision making 
processes. Those who find it difficult to attend meetings, due to disability, caring 
responsibilities, work commitments or access to transport, will be able to benefit.

9.2. Having an audio record on file may work to reduce the number of people who 
attend meetings even further. Alternatively, the number of residents listening to 
recordings may be very low. At the end of the one year pilot the Council would 
need to assess the value of audio recording meetings to assess whether it 
should be continued or not.

10. Other Implications
 

Are there any implications for the following?

Yes No
Crime & Disorder: x
Climate Change: x
Human Rights and Equality Impact:  Those who find it difficult to 
attend meetings, due to disability, caring responsibilities, work 
commitments or access to transport, will find the audio recordings 
beneficial.

x

Safeguarding: x
Other (Please specify): eg Biodiversity x

Page 25



11. Appendices
None

12. Background Papers

12.1. Task and Finish Group meeting 29 January 2015 agenda and notes (exempt 
papers)

Page 26



Chichester District Council

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       17 March 2015

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2014/15 Annual Report 

1. Contacts

Clare Apel, Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Tel: 01243 783738 E-mail: capel@chichester.gov.uk  

Bambi Jones, Principal Scrutiny Officer
Tel: 01243 534685  E-mail: bjones@chichester.gov.uk

2. Recommendation 

The Committee is requested to:

1. Consider and agree the 2014/15 Annual Report and to recommend it to 
Council for noting.

2. Agree delegated powers to the committee’s Chairman to sign off the final 
version of the report prior to its presentation to Council.

3. Background

3.1 The Council’s Constitution states that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(OSC) must report annually to full Council on its workings and make 
recommendations on its future work programmes and amended working 
methods if appropriate.  

3.2  As the full year is yet to be completed, the committee is requested to agree 
that delegated power is given to the chairman to sign off the final version of 
the report prior to its presentation to Full Council.

3.3 A workshop will be held following the meeting today for OSC members to start 
considering items for the committee’s work programme for next year. 
Following the elections any new members appointed to the committee in May 
2015 will be involved in considering the draft work programme and in 
contributing to its development. The OSC at its first meeting of the new 
municipal year on 2 July 2015 will be requested to agree this work 
programme. 

3.4 Full Council on 14 July 2015 will be requested to consider and note the OSC’s 
Annual Report 2014/15 and Work Programme 2015/16.

4. Outcomes to be achieved

4.1 The council has a record of the work carried out by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee for 2014/15 and the outcomes achieved.

Page 27

Agenda Item 9

mailto:capel@chichester.gov.uk
mailto:bjones@chichester.gov.uk


5. Community impact and corporate risks

5.1   One of the committee’s roles is to act as a community champion in reflecting 
the views and interests of the community and to consider matters affecting the 
area or its inhabitants. 

6. Other Implications 

Are there any implications for the following?

Crime & Disorder No
Climate Change No
Human Rights and Equality Impact No
Safeguarding: No
Other (Please specify): eg Biodiversity No

7. Appendices
Appendix 1 – Overview & Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2014/15

Page 28



Chichester District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Annual Report 2014/15

Introduction by the Chairman

It seems extraordinary to think this will be the last year that this report will be prepared with 
the excellent committee we have at the moment. None of us knows what the situation will 
be after May 7th. Whatever happens there will be changes with the committee. 

On that note I feel we have achieved another very constructive and full year. As you can 
see there have been a number of Task and Finish groups which have made useful 
recommendations, most of which have been accepted. The 70% acceptance rate by 
Cabinet on the committee’s recommendations I would say is commendable. I hope the new 
committee will be able to be as proactive.  

Scrutiny is a part of local government which must be recognised for the good and 
constructive messages it sends. It should be applied to all parts of our lives. I do hope that 
in the future we will have the time to put an issue forward for the national scrutiny awards.  

Once again thank you members of the committee for all the support, suggestions and help 
you have given me. Thank you Steve, Bambi and Lisa for all the work you do and I hope all 
concerned are really proud of what has been done.

Clare Apel
Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Scrutiny at Chichester District Council
Scrutiny is the way in which non-executive members of the council hold the Cabinet to 
account. They do this by reviewing existing council policy or decisions and by inputting into 
the development of new policies before the Cabinet approves these. In some cases they 
may ask for a decision (made by the Cabinet) to be re-considered before it is implemented 
to make sure all possible outcomes are thought through. These are called call-ins. 

The committee has the power to hold partner authorities and other public bodies to account 
by requiring information from them and requiring them to ‘have regard’ to the committee’s 
report or recommendations. 

Setting the OSC work programme for 2014/15
The 2014/15 OSC work programme was developed taking into account:

 the Corporate Plan projects agreed by Cabinet 
 the Forward Plan of Cabinet key decisions over the next few months
 projects identified from individual Service Plans
 items proposed or raised by Members
 topics included in last year’s work programme which were delayed
 topics requiring members’ involvement suggested by the Business Routeing Panel

A number of Task and Finish Groups were set up to carry out reviews in more depth and to 
report back to the main committee. These task and finish group reviews are detailed later in 

Page 29



the report. Space was left in the work programme for topical issues that often arise during 
the year. 

All Members were consulted in the development of this work programme through a member 
workshop held on 23 May 2014. 

The impact and influence of scrutiny
The Overview & Scrutiny Committee met five times in 2014/15. The Chairman meets with 
the committee half an hour before each meeting to enable discussion about the agenda 
items and to agree a line of questioning for each topic. 

Task and Finish Groups are used to hear witnesses and scrutinise papers in detail and 
report to one committee in order to maximise the volume and depth of its work.

A total of 10 recommendations have been made by the committee to the Cabinet during the 
year. Seven recommendations were agreed, with three yet to be considered, giving a 70% 
achievement at this stage. 

There were no call-ins’ this year. Cabinet Members have shown strong support for the 
scrutiny process by attending relevant OSC meetings. 

Of the 48 members on the council, 15 are on the OSC. With Cabinet Members and other 
interested members attending meetings or involved in task and finish groups this relates to 
71% of all members being involved in scrutiny in some form or other during the year.  

Members’ training and development
 Mrs C Apel attended the Centre for Public Scrutiny annual conference and awards on 

10 June 2014. 
 Mr A Chaplin attended the South East Seminar on developing affordable housing supply 

and examining market schemes on 2 July 2014.
 Mrs C Apel also attended the LGiU Being an effective Councillor: Influencing Skills day 

on 20 November 2014.

Main areas of work for overview and scrutiny this year and outcomes/achievements

Areas of focus Outcomes/achievements
Review of Planning 
Enforcement Strategy

The committee endorsed the revised Planning Enforcement 
Strategy and recommended it to Cabinet, who approved the 
strategy on 9 September 2014.

The Novium The committee considered and endorsed the vision, aims and 
objectives in the Novium Business Development Strategy and 
recommended it to Cabinet. Cabinet subsequently agreed the 
Strategy, one of the key actions of which was the removal of 
charging for entry to local collections from 17 November 2014. 

Development 
Management Service 

The committee considered the Development Management 
Service performance review and noted the new staffing structure 
and the improved performance of the team. The committee 
recommended to Cabinet that the Planning Committee structure 
be reviewed in May 2016, one year after implementation.

Page 30



Housing Strategy 
Delivery Plan 2013-18 

The committee noted the housing delivery achievements and the 
delivery of milestones in the Housing Strategy Delivery Plan and 
endorsed the new Housing Strategy Delivery Plan dates. 

The adoption of new 
models of affordable 
housing delivery 
including shared equity

The committee considered the new models of affordable housing 
delivery and approved the proposed Intermediate Housing Policy. 
The committee requested a future paper on community land trusts 
in 2015.

Midhurst Community 
Leisure Facilities

The committee considered the Grange operational report and 
noted the operational performance of the Grange against the 
original budget. The committee will consider the post project 
evaluation in July 2015.

Careline Business Plan The committee considered the Careline Business Plan progress 
report. The committee noted Chichester Careline’s progress 
against the business plan for 2013/14 and financial and business 
planning position in 2014/15.

Task & Finish Groups
The work of the Task and Finish Groups is described below along with the outcomes 
achieved.

Tourism Task and Finish Group
Mr G McAra (Chairman), Mrs C Apel, Mr N Thomas, Mrs N Graves and Mrs B Tinson

Areas of focus – Review of the delivery model which Visit Chichester is working to and 
consideration as to whether the structure is right and fit for purpose. A strong destination 
management organisation (DMO) for the district, raising the profile of the district as a visitor 
destination and increasing tourism business to the district. Consideration of the in-kind 
support which the Council can provide to Visit Chichester. The Tourism Task and Finish 
Group considered the Visit England model and analysis of other delivery models e.g. Visit 
York, Visit Winchester, GoLakes, Visit Peaks, Canterbury, Oxford etc. to understand the 
attributes of the best performing models and how to encourage private sector investment 
and new models of funding. All council members were invited to a presentation on tourism 
and destination management from Mrs Melanie Sensicle, Chief Executive of Visit County 
Durham on 22 July 2014. The group also considered the Coastal West Sussex study into 
destination management.
Outcomes – The final report has been delayed to the March 2015 meeting and the 
outcome will be updated prior the presentation of this report to Cabinet and Council.

Committee Audio System and Recording Meetings Task and Finish Group
Mr S Lloyd-Williams (Chairman), Mr P Clementson, Mr R Hayes, Mr G Hicks and Mr G 
McAra 
Areas of focus – At Council on 23 September 2014, when considering a recommendation 
from Cabinet regarding Government regulations on openness of Local Government, 
including a requirement to allow any member of the public to take photographs, audio 
record or film proceedings of all meetings, excluding Part 2 agenda items, a member 
reminded the Council of the previous proposal to audio record certain meetings which had 
failed to gain majority support. He was concerned that the Council would not have its own 
full record of proceedings to rebut any misrepresentation or out-of-context use of press or 
public recordings. Council members agreed and asked him to bring forward for 

Page 31



consideration a further proposal on recording meetings. At the November 2014 meeting of 
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee Members agreed to set up a task and finish group to 
consider options around a replacement microphone/audio system and to reconsider future 
recording of meetings. The group discussed options to resource future audio recording or 
webcasting of the Council’s meetings. Three suppliers of microphone systems were invited 
to demonstrate to the task and finish group and other members. 
Outcomes – The group will recommend to the OSC at its meeting on 17 March 2015 that a 
new microphone system be purchased from the Council’s Asset Replacement Programme 
budget with the capability of audio recording council meetings. The group also 
recommended a one year pilot be carried out to audio record and publish online Council, 
Cabinet, Planning and Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings. The group decided 
against progressing webcasting arrangements. 

Community Safety Review Task and Finish Group
Mrs N Graves, Mr B Hayes (Chairman), Mrs G Keegan, Mr H Potter and Mr N Thomas

Areas of focus –  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a statutory duty in 
accordance with Sections 19 and 20 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 to review the 
district’s Community Safety Partnership (CSP) by holding the CSP to account for its 
decision making, scrutinising the performance of the CSP and undertaking policy reviews 
of specific community safety issues. The group held two meetings at which various 
partners were asked to attend to give evidence. The Community Interventions Manager 
and Head of Community Services gave members an update on the various projects and 
initiatives they are contributing to in the CSP Business Plan. Chief Inspector Justin 
Burtenshaw, District Commander of Chichester, Sussex Police spoke on crime 
performance, challenges and priorities. The WSCC Better Communities Manager spoke 
about the Safer West Sussex Partnership work. Mrs E Lintill, Chairman of the CSP and the 
Council’s representative on the Police and Crime Panel (PCP) talked about the relationship 
between the CSP and the PCP and the council’s Community Safety Officer and a 
representative from A2 Dominion talked about partnership working in Chichester East.
Outcomes – The final report of the group will be considered at the March 2015 meeting of 
the OSC committee with any recommendations being made to the CSP.

Corporate Plan Task and Finish Group
Mr J Cherry (non-member), Mrs P Dignum (Chairman), Mr S Lloyd-Williams and Mr H 
Potter 
Areas of focus – To consider mid-year progress on actions and targets in the Corporate 
Plan and to identify any further action that needs to be taken to challenge poor 
performance and to reduce any risk to an acceptable level.
Outcomes – The council’s key projects were monitored for successful delivery. After 
review the group was happy with action proposed to be taken to address poor or delayed 
performance.

Education Task and Finish Group
Mr B Hayes, Mrs N Graves, Mrs J Tassell and Mrs Tinson (Chairman).
Areas of focus – The group was established, following a previous OSC review in 2012, to 
consider the current performance of schools in the Chichester district, the current status of 
secondary schools and children’s readiness for school (i.e. the under 5s at first entry to 
primary school). The group received presentations from the Corporate Information Officer 
with educational performance data of Chichester primary and secondary schools and 
information on the supply of pre-school settings across the district; the WSCC Head of 

Page 32



Schools to clarify and validate the performance figures and explain any slippage in 
performance, to give his opinions on the overall direction of travel; to explain WSCC role in 
managing performance and WSCC relationship with and influence over academies; the 
WSCC General Advisor for Area A Schools to give more in-depth information about 
desktop performance monitoring on school results carried out and to explain value added 
scores and students’ improvement information; the WSCC Principal Manager Early 
Childhood, Children’s Services to hear about Early Years and ‘readiness for school’ 
initiatives, to receive an overview of early years provision in the area and to explain the key 
themes and areas of action; the Community Interventions Manager, to hear about the work 
which her team is doing as part of the Think Family Programme and on Early Help 
strategies and the Director of Education, The Kemnall Academies Trust, to give his 
perspective on performance in the Trust’s schools, their direction of travel and related 
details, his views on readiness for school issues and what we can do/how we can work 
closely together to identify and ensure help for those families who need it. 
Outcomes –The group was reassured on a number of points. The key points from the 
review were that the Council should commit to support family friendly policies and consider 
how it could support Early Years and Early Help structures which support families with 
young children seeking or identified as needing help, that the Council works with WSCC to 
increase funding for the Think Family Phase 2 by working with partners who have made 
savings as a result of the benefits of the Think Family Programme e.g. DWP, police, 
accident and emergency etc; and that an open dialogue is maintained with local schools 
through Members’ involvement as governors. The OSC agreed to undertake a further 
review of educational attainment in the district in early 2016 when there may be new 
Government educational policies and performance monitoring targets in place and it is 
likely that more schools in the Chichester district will have converted to academy status. 
The recommendations to support family friendly policies and support Early Help were taken 
to Cabinet on 3 March 2015 to support a recommendation to implement the WSCC Early 
Help program.

Budget Task and Finish Group
Overview and Scrutiny Members: Mr R Hayes (Chairman), Mr S Lloyd-Williams and Mrs B 
Tinson and Corporate Governance and Audit Committee Members: Mr R Marshall, Mrs T 
Tull and Mr A French
Areas of focus – This group has representatives from both the Overview & Scrutiny 
(performance and policy remit) and Corporate Governance & Audit Committees 
(governance and risk remit). The group considered the 5 Year Financial Model and 
Statement of Resources 2014-15 to 2019-20 and the projected revenue budget variations 
for 2014-15 and 2015-16. 
Outcomes – Members involvement with budget scrutiny prior to presentation of the 
Budget to Cabinet in February 2015 and Full Council approval in March 2015. The group 
were satisfied with the explanation of projected variances on the 2014/15 budget.  

WSCC Select Committee liaison
The following members have attended WSCC Select Committees and reported back to the 
committee on issues of interest to the Chichester district and local residents.

 Mrs C Apel - Children & Young People’s Services Select Committee
 Mrs P Dignum – is the council’s representative on the Health & Adults Social Care 

Select Committee (HASC) 

The Council can submit concerns regarding any health issue to the HASC for consideration 
via its Business Planning Group (BPG) which meets quarterly. A concern in 2014 was the 

Page 33



proposed new depot for South East Coast Ambulance Service (SECAMB) in Tangmere. 
Representatives from SECAMB were invited to present to the full Council before its 
September meeting. Members were reassured that there would be no detriment to service 
delivery for Chichester residents.

West Sussex Joint Scrutiny
Mrs C Apel is on the West Sussex Joint Scrutiny Steering Group, a group of scrutiny 
members from the seven districts and boroughs of West Sussex who get together to 
suggest joint scrutiny reviews on issues of common interest to all authorities. 

Following a review of the previous year’s operation, the Joint Scrutiny terms of reference 
and protocol were updated in July 2014.

A review of Community Advice Services was carried out by a task and finish group in the 
Autumn 2014, following which the final report was circulated to all District and Borough 
Councils in West Sussex. Members of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee were consulted 
for comment in advance of the report’s consideration by Cabinet in October 2014. Cabinet 
approved the recommendations which were to act jointly with WSCC and its District and 
Borough Councils to procure a Community Advice Service for a period of five years with the 
option to extend the contract for up to a further five years. The service specification was 
agreed along with the annual funding contribution.

Page 34



OSC WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16 DRAFT

2 July 2015

Getting People into Work Strategy – Progress 
against Action Plan

 OSC April 2014 requested that a further report be brought 
back in one year’s time, at end of three year action plan.

 Monitoring role

A Loaring

Chichester Festival Theatre and Pallant House 
Gallery 

 Review of annual performance 2014/15 in relation to funding 
given; review of SLAs 2015/16

 Possible Task and Finish Group?
 To meet March/April 2015 and report back to OSC May 2015

S Hansford

Access to the Private Rented Sector - Homefinder 
Scheme

 OSC Sept 2013 requested further review in advance of full 
three year operation.

 Circulate one page progress update in September 2014.
 Carry out full review in advance of Cabinet consideration in 

May/June 2015. Cabinet agreed ‘That the internal lettings 
agency be continued subject to a further review in 2015 after 
it has been running for three years.’  

R Dunmall

Homelessness Strategy  Deferred from November 2014.
 Existing Strategy expires 2014. Part of Housing Strategy 

action plan.
 Scheduled for Cabinet 7 July 2015. 

M Grele/R Dunmall

The Grange Post Project Evaluation  Agreed by OSC 18 November to carry out this review in 
advance of this report going to Cabinet in July 2015

J Hotchkiss

15 September 2015


17 November 2015
Housing Strategy review  Review Strategy in light of central government's review of 

Housing supply (date approximate) - report to Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee

L Grange

P
age 35



Corporate Plan Mid-Term Review  Task and Finish Group to review October 2015 and report 
back to OSC Nov 2015

 Develop Terms of Ref at September 2015 meeting

A Huggett

12 January 2016

Budget review  Task and Finish Group to meet Dec 2015 and report back to 
Jan 2016 OSC

 Develop Terms of Reference at Nov 2015 OSC

J Ward

ASB Act and Enforcement Policy  Policy to Cabinet December 2014
 Review implementation early 2016

S Hansford

Educational review Following the review of education carried out in November 2014, 
the OSC agreed to undertake a further review of educational 
attainment in the district in early 2016 when there may be new 
Government educational policies and performance monitoring 
targets in place and it is likely that more schools in the Chichester 
district will have converted to academy status.

Steve Hansford

Voluntary Action Arun & Chichester  Following OSC review in Sep/Oct 2013 and Cabinet  Jan 
2014 agreement to the re-commissioning of voluntary and 
community support services, VCAC agreement renewed for a 
period of two years until March 2016 (in line with WSCC 
contract).

 A further review of VAAC performance is required in Jan 
2016 to allow further re-commissioning of this service to 
commence April 2016.

S Hansford

Public Health  Project Outcomes E Thomas

15 March 2016

Community Safety Partnership  Statutory annual review of the CSP
 Task and Finish Group to meet Jan/Feb 2016 and report to 

OSC Mar 2016
 Develop Terms of Reference at Nov 2015 OSC

S Hansford
P Bushby

Novium - Business Plan & Commercial Services  Review of Business Plan J Hotchkiss

P
age 36



Westgate Leisure  Business Plan  Review of Business Plan J Hotchkiss
Housing Allocations Scheme  Reviewed by OSC June 2013; agreed that rural allocations 

policy elements of scheme be reviewed by OSC every 3 
years i.e. next in 2016. Also any changes of a non-policy 
nature made to the scheme should be reported to the OSC, 
but signed off by L Rudziak. 

 Milestone on Housing Strategy Delivery Plan 31 July 2016.

R Dunmall/ Ian 
Owen

OSC Annual Report 2015/16 and Work Plan 
2016/17

 Produce a 2015/16 annual report along with work programme 
for 2016/17

B Jones

Possible additions:
 Contact Centre Review
 Hyde Group review
 Introduce guidelines on minimum space standards for all new affordable homes / Linda Grange

FUTURE ITEMS
Sep 2016 Multi-agency agreement for management of 

encampments across West Sussex and 
provision of a transit site

Post  project evaluation D Shepherd/ J 
Bacon / R Darton

Sept 2016 Think Family Expansion Neighbourhoods - 
Tangmere

Progress Report S Hansford

Dec 2017 Development of Barnfield Drive Post project evaluation J Hotchkiss

Feb 2018 Enterprise Gateway Development - Plot 12 
Terminus Road

Post project evaluation J Hotchkiss

March 2018 Develop good practice to deal with benefit 
changes and introduction of fixed term 
tenancies 

Strategy Delivery Plan 2013-18 priority action to 
develop good practice to deal with benefit changes and 
introduction of fixed term tenancies.

R Dunmall

P
age 37


	Agenda
	6 Community Safety Partnership Task and Finish Group Final Report
	7 Tourism Task and Finish Group Final Report
	8 Committee Audio/Visual Recording Task and Finish Group Final Report
	9 Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2014/15 Annual Report
	Overview and Scrutiny 2014/15 Annual Report
	Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015-16 draft


